TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON - ELECTRONIC MEETING

M' COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE - THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2020 - 6:30 P.M.
! = 4 {(For information on how to join the meeting, please go to the Council

e, . Meetings page on the Township Website to find the link, meeting code and
w password)

1. Call to Order

2 Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda

3. Adoption of Draft Minutes - June 18, 2020

Motion - that the minutes of the Committee of the Whole Meeting held on June 18, 2020 be
approved as circulated.

4. Business Arising from the Minutes
5. Correspondence
6. General Business
1. Cycling Trails/Routes - Discussion
2. Township of Puslinch Resolution of May 28, 2020 regarding the fair method of valuation
for aggregate resources properties and information provided by Wendy Atkinson,
Treasurer
2. Unfinished Business
1. Heritage Committee - Defer to October 15™ meeting

3. Other/Addition(s)

7. Delegations
8. Adjournment and Date of Next Meeting
Motion - That we adjourn Committee of the Whole at p.m. to meet again on Thursday)|

October 15, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. or at the call of the Chair.




a?p

~F

PUSLINCH

July 7, 2020
RE: TAPMO Executive Meeting Minutes dated May 28, 2020.

Please be advised that Township of Puslinch Council, at its meeting held on June 17, 2020
considered the aforementioned topic and subsequent to discussion, the following was resolved:

Resolution No. 2020-166: Moved by Councillor Bulmer and
Seconded by Councillor Sepulis

That the Intergovernmental Affairs correspondence item 4 listed for JUNE 17, 2020
Council meeting be received; and

WHEREAS previous assessment methodologies for aggregate resource properties
valued areas that were used for aggregate resources or gravel pits at industrial land
rates on a per acre basis of the total site and such properties were formally classified
and taxed as industrial lands;

WHEREAS the Council of Puslinch supports a fair and equitable assessment system for
all aggregate resource properties;

WHEREAS the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation determined, with the
participation only of the Ontario Sand, Stone and Gravel Association, revised criteria
for assessing aggregate resource properties;

AND WHEREAS the Council of Puslinch has cancerns that the revised criteria does not
fairly assess the current value of the aggregate resource properties;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

{a) That the Council of Puslinch does not consider the revised criteria for assessment
of aggregate resource properties as a fair method of valuation for these properties;
and

(b) The Council of Puslinch believes there is a need to review the current

7404 \Weihngton Rood 34, Pushinch, OM NOB 2J0
Tel (519} 763-1226 Fox (51%) 763-5846 admm@pushnch co

{NFO # LN
ecl. X JUL 167020

SEP 17 1020



it

PUSLINCH

assessment scheme for aggregate resource properties to address the inequity of
property
values;

(c) The Council of Puslinch hereby calls upen the Province to work with the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation to address the assessment issue so that aggregate
resource properties are assessed for their industrial value; and

(d) The Council of Puslinch directs the Clerk to provide a copy of this motion to the
Minister of Finance, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, Minister of Natural
Resources and Forestry, AMO, ROMA, and all Ontario municipalities and {the local
MPP(s})}

CARRIED

As per the above resolution, please accept a copy of this correspondence for your information
and caonsideration.

Sincerely,
Courtenay Hoytfox
Deputy Clerk

7404 Wellington Road 34, Pushach, ON NOR 2J0
Tel {519)763-1226 Fax: (519) 763-5846 ndmin@puslineh o



MUNICIPAL

mpac PROPERTY
( ASSESSEMENT
CORPORATION

METHODOLOGY GUIDE
VALUING PITS AND QUARRIES IN ONTARIO

Valuation Date: January 1, 2016

AUGUST 2016



MLUNIECIPAL PROPERTY ABSESSMENT CORPORATION

August 22, 2016

The Municipal Property Assessment Corporation (MPAC} is responsible for accurately assessing
and classifying property in Ontario for the purposes of municipal and education taxes.

In Ontario’s assessment system, MPAC assesses your property value every four years. This year,
MPAC is updating the value of every property in the province to reflect the legislated valuation
date of January 1, 2016.

MPAC is committed to provide Ontario property owners, municipalities and all its stakeholders
with the best possible service through transparency, predictability and accuracy in values. As
part of this commitment, MPAC has defined three levels of disclosure of information in support
of its delivery of this year's assessment update. This Methodology Guide is the first level of
information disclosure.

This guide provides an overview of the valuation methodology undertaken by MPAC when
assessing pits and quarries for this year’s update ensuring the methodology for valuing these
properties is well documented and in alignment with industry standards.

Property owners can access additional information about their own properties through
aboutmyproperty.ca. Login information for aboutmyproperty.ca is provided on each Property
Assessment Notice mailed this year, Additional information about MPAC can be accessed at
mpac.ca.

e & B

Antoni Wisniowski Rose MclLean, M.I.M.A,

President and Chief Administrative Officer Chief Operating Officer



Table of Contents

1.0 INTRODUCTION ..oeverieernsrrncrnsossostessonssannsressonssssnnsesssnsesssssnasssnsasnarens R LT g
1.1 PROPERTIES COVERED BY THIS IMETHODOLOGY GUIDE vvuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiessssennacersssssesssnsssssssnssssasnssarsan 4
1.2 LEGISLATION cevereereeereeeereerereremmerseersesersresssssssssssesssesssssasssssssssassassssssssssssssnsssnessestennenseessenersrrrsrnen 5
1.3 CLASSIFICATION 1 vevvvnerenssieresssessusssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssosssssssnnninsossnnassernse 5

1.4 THE USE OF THIS METHODOLOGY GUIDE .....vveeveriereerearereesssrnsessnssssansssssmsesesoessasssersosssssssonssssssssssrass O

1.5 CONSULTATION AND DISCLOSURE .....ucceernverneeeasessssosesanrmntrsssssssmssssssssssssis nsssssssssarsssssnsassssssassrsssnns 7

2,0 THE VALUATION PROGCESS .e.ivvtetvrrerssranssrsnnsrsnniorsansssssnssssansesssniasssasasessssasssssasssssssssssassossons 8

2L DUTLINE .. eeeeeveseeee e e e e e e et e neeseaseeneeeasaasaannsesemens e ensnerer s b b e s s nnera b bedesieedasssansssbisssnbssnsssnensassen 8
2.2 APPROACH ceevvevrannrasesssennsesss sernassssnrantesasressessasessesessensnesmasasresssessusessasassnesssssssrsnssarrssnnnsinssnstesserss 8
2.3 DATA COLLECTION A o L Lo o, I T e, 9
2.8 DATA ANALYSIS «ceeeeeeeeeeeecaanntaneenrerrtssrrraebnnssessssseressssssssssssssssssssasssnsesssisisssesessssssssnnnrssssssassssssnn 11
2.5 VALUATION ..oeeieeieieeiceeeiisneenasaraneeeeessssssisnesesssssesssssssessesessasessanasessss s saaeessssesssmsssssnstnsnsessessssssss 12
2.6 VALIDATING THE RESULTS...ccceveirrrierrerneesinnessisreseseesnonsessssnessssnesessessossrecsasnnsssansssasntosssssossnrasssnns 12

3.1 COST APPROACH DVERVIEW tiiciuiiiiisiiranennoersisiinnssinesssinsasinasssssosssnnimsnsssssssmeessssnessssnassanesssansansns 13
3.2 LAND WALUATION coevereireereresirsrrsresessasesssinunnsserthussssssatte s sesatss s sassasssessasiersssssssssisssesssssssnesasssnsses 13
3.3 BUILDING AND SITE IMPROVEMENTS. ...ceeeieeeeerernreesessssnnsssssnssmessssmrnesasansesnmmessrsmateremssassssssssssssssss 14
3.4 ESTABLISHING COST INEW....eeeeieeeeiieeeeeereeerereerersssrinsnentatnersssssiossetsssssssssssssssscssosessssnnssssssssssssnnsns 15
3.5 DEDUCTING DEPRECIATION AND/OR DBSOLESCENCE covecvvererersseeerrssssreesiessssannerssssssareessssnseesssosannenssns 16
3.6 CURRENT VALUE CONCLUSION .uvevreeervverecorsrresrsssssssssssssasssssssansssssasseseesamsesasesmeeasaressssorsesssssssssssssss 17
3.8 QUALITY CONTROL..eeieeiuererieienteeraesnnnerssssanesresssentoriossnnresasasessssnsntestasssstesssssssnetsssnsassnsnesssisssesons i7

.0 CONCLUSION .cvvieeeeeereeenrieteriesissssueserssssssssessnssensnnssssssnsssssssssesssssnsssssssossnsssssssssssesssssessnsessssnnssene 17



1.0 Introduction

The Municipal Property Assessment Corporation {(MPAC) — mpac.ca — is responsible for
accurately assessing and classifying property in Ontario for the purposes of municipal and
education taxation.

in Ontario, property assessments are updated on the basis of a four-year assessment cycle. In
2016, MPAC will update the assessments of Ontario’s nearly five million properties to reflect
the legislated valuation date of January 1, 2016. Assessments updated for the 2016 base year
are in effect for the 2017-2020 property tax years.

The last Assessment Update was based on a January 1, 2012, valuation date. Increases between
the 2012 assessed value and 2016 assessed value are phased in over a four-year period. Any
decreases in assessment are applied immediately.

It is important to ensure that the valuation methodology applied is capable of providing 2
realistic estimate of current value at the relevant valuation date, which, in turn, enables all
stakeholders to understand the valuation process and have confidence in the fairness and
consistency of its outcome.

This Methodology Guide has been prepared for the benefit of MPAC assessors, property
owners and their representatives, municipalities and their representatives, Assessment Review
Board members, provincial officials, and the general public.

This guide outlines the valuation process to be followed by an assessor, including steps that
require appraisal judgment. It is incumbent upon the assessor to make informed decisions
throughout the valuation process when arriving at estimates in current value.

1.1 Properties Covered by This Methodology Guide

This Methodology Guide applies to pits and quarries in Ontario. A pit or quarry is where
aggregate (i.e., sand, stone and gravel) is extracted. The following MPAC property codes are
used to categorize the various types of pits and quarries in Ontario:

e 228 Farm with gravel pit
* 593 Gravel pit, quarry, sand pit

It should be noted that these are general guidelines that vary depending on the specific
circumstances of a particular property.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 4



An assessor may also make reference to additional Methodology Guides for properties that do
not fall precisely within the description of one of the property codes listed above.

1.2 Legislation

The main legislation governing the assessment of properties in Ontario for property tax
purposes is contained in the Assessment Act.}

The Act contains important definitions and states what property is taxable and how it should be
valued. Section 19(1) requires that the land be assessed at current value, which is to mean, in
relation to land, “the amount of money the fee simple, if unencumbered, would realize if sold
at arm's length by a willing seller to a willing buyer.” Land as defined in the Act includes “all
mines, minerals, gas, oil, salt quarries and fossils in and under land.”

Section 3(1)20 of the Act provides an exemption from taxation for mineral land and minerals
including “the buildings, plant and machinery in or on the land only to the extent and in the

proportion that the buildings, plant and machinery are used for obtaining minerals from the

ground, and all minerals that are in, on or under land.”

In 2008, the Assessment Act was amended to exempt all minerals from taxation. As a result,
paragraph 20 of Section 3{1) of the Assessment Act provides an exemption from taxation for
“the buildings, plant and machinery under mineral land and the machinery in or on the land
only to the extent and in the proportion that the buildings, plant and machinery are used for
obtaining minerals from the ground, and all minerals that are in, on or under land.”

Prior to 2008, the Act provided exemption for “all minerals, other than diatomaceous earth,
limestone, marble, peat, clay, building stone, stone for ornamental or decorative purposes, or
non-auriferous sand or gravel that are in or under land.”

The Minister of Finance filed Ontario Regulation 430/15 on December 18, 2015, which added
additional rules affecting the valuation and classification of properties on which a third-party
sign (billboard) is located. To comply with the regulation, the income attributable to a third-
party sign will not be included in the valuation of any property for assessment purposes.

1.3 Classification

MPAC's role is to accurately assess and classify all properties in Ontario in accordance with the
Assessment Act and regulations established by the Government of Ontario.

! Assessment Act, R.5.0 1990, ¢ A.31: https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90a31.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 5



The classification of pits and quarries are covered in various sections of Ontario Regulation
282/987 as follows:

Section 3(1)3 includes in the Residential Property Class “the portion of land that is licensed or
required to be licensed under Part Il of the Aggregate Resources Act that is not in the farm
property class or the industrial property class.”

Section 6(2)2 includes in the Industrial Property Class “for the 1998 and 1999 taxation years,
land used for mining, quarrying, producing oil or gas or extracting anything from the earth.”

Sections 6(2)2.1 and 6(2)2.2 also includes in the Industrial Property Class with some exceptions
“land used for mining, quarrying, producing oil or gas or extracting anything from the earth.”

As stated above, the exemption from taxation for minerals, which includes sand, stone and
gravel, is contained in Section 3{1)20 of the Assessment Act.

Classification is based on use, so if a portion of the property is used for other purposes, it may
be necessary to value those components separately and sum the component values to achieve
the correct total current value. It may also be necessary to apportion the total value of the
property between the various uses to ensure that the appropriate tax rate is applied to the
relevant parts of the property.

1.4 The Use of This Methodology Guide
This Methodology Guide is intended to:

* Ensure MPAC’s assessed values for these properties are fair, accurate, predictable and
transparent.

* Provide direction to assessors and clear explanations to municipalities, taxpayers and
Assessment Review Board members.

* Ensure that MPAC’s methodology for valuing these properties is well documented and
aligns with industry standards.

¢ Explain the thought process/decision-making process that an assessor should undertake
to apply the valuation methodology.

» Ensure a consistent approach to valuing these property types.

? Ontario Regulation 282/98, GENERAL: https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/980282.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 6



* Support MPAC assessors in conducting their due diligence in:

» applying Ontario’s legislation and regulations
¥ adhering to industry standards for market valuation in a mass appraisal
environment

It should be noted that this Methodology Guide is not intended to be a substitute for an
assessor's judgment in arriving at a market value—based assessment (i.e., current value) for a
particular property. However, given that the Methodology Guide explains industry standards
for property assessment, conforms to valuation industry norms, and adheres to provincial
tegislation and regulation, MPAC assessors are expected to follow the procedures in the
Methodology Guide and be able to clearly and satisfactorily justify any deviations from it.

1.5 Consultation and Disclosure

MPAC is committed to providing municipalities, taxpayers and all its stakeholders with the best
possible service through transparency, predictability and accuracy. In support of this
commitment, MPAC has defined three levels of disclosure as part of its delivery of the 2016
province-wide Assessment Update.

+ Llevel 1 - Methodology Guides explaining how MPAC approached the valuation of
particular types of property

s Level 2 - Market Valuation Reports explaining how the methodology outlined in Level 1
has been applied at the sector level for the purposes of each assessment

» Level 3 — Property Specific Valuation Information available to property taxpayers, their
representatives and municipalities

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 7



2.0 The Valuation Process

The valuation process always begins with a determination of the highest and best use of the
subject property.

Any reliance upon this guide is made only after the assessor has determined that the highest
and best use of the subject property is that of a pit or quarry.

Assessors determine the value of a property using one of three different approaches to value:

» the direct {sales) comparison approach
» theincome approach
* the cost approach

2.1 Outline

In the direct (sales} comparison approach, value is indicated by recent sales of comparable
properties in the market. In considering any sales evidence, it is critical to ensure that the
property sold has a similar or identical highest and best use as the property to be valued.

In the income approach (or, more accurately, the income capitalization approach), value is
indicated by a property’s revenue-earning power, based on the capitalization of income. This
method requires a detailed analysis of both income and expenditure, both for the property
being valued and other similar properties that may have been sold, in order to ascertain the
anticipated revenue and expenses, along with the relevant capitalization rate.

In the cost approach, value is estimated as the current cost of reproducing or replacing
improvements of the land (including buildings, structures and other taxable components), less
any loss in value resulting from depreciation. The market value of the land is then added.

MPAC uses the cost approach to value pits or quarries. This approach separately values
improvements and land to produce a current value for the property.

2.2 Approach

There are three main phases in the valuation process used by MPAC:
+ data collection
¢ analysis of the data collected

¢ valuation

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved



2.3 Data Collection

The data required for gravel pit and quarry valuations come from a number of sources:

MPAC conducts periodic inspections of pits and quarries.
MPAC sends land use questionnaires to owners of pits and quarries.
MPAC also collects information about sales and transfers of gravel pits and quarries.

There are a number of guides and other published information about pits and quarries.

MPAC generally collects the following types of data for pits and quarries:

Land

general data
financial data
property description

sales data for marginal farmlands

The pit or quarry site may be categorized according to the following uses:

extraction
future extraction
depleted

farm

Site Improvements

Site improvements may include:

exterior access roads
interior access roads
berms

fencing

tunnels

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved



Building Improvements
Building improvements may include:
* screening plants
¢ hoppers
* conveyors
e wash plants
* tanks
* weigh scales
* electrical rooms
¢ office

* parage

transformer station

The land will be measured in terms of its size in acres. Buildings will normally be measured in
square feet,

MPAC will record details not only of the size and capacity of the buildings and structures, but
also their age, condition and use.

MPAC will either prepare a plan of the site and buildings or obtain one from the site operator.
The site plan will identify all the different buildings, structures and other improvements by a
reference number for ease of identification.

These reference numbers will be used in the valuation of the pit or quarry to ensure that all
parts of the property are properly included in the current value assessment.

Confidentiality

As outlined above, it is important to be aware that, in order to enable MPAC to produce an
accurate valuation of the property concerned, information needs to be obtained from a variety
of sources.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 10



This will include information from MPAC's records, from the owner or operator of the property,
from the municipality in which the property is located, from the assessor’s visit to the property,
and from other sources.

All stakeholders in the property tax system have an interest in ensuring that the current value
provided by MPAC is correct; in order to achieve this, it is necessary for all parties to cooperate
in the provision of information.

It is appreciated that some of the information outlined above may be of a commercially
sensitive nature. MPAC recognizes the need to ensure that any information provided to it is
properly safeguarded and only used for the purpose for which it is supplied. Assessors must
appreciate the nature of this undertaking and ensure data is treated accordingly.

If, after an appeal has been filed, MPAC receives a request for the release of actual income and
expense information, or other sensitive commercial proprietary information, the usual practice
is to require the person seeking the information to bring a motion before the Assessment
Review Board {ARB), with notice to the third parties, requesting that the ARB order production
of the requested information. The release of such information is at the discretion of the ARB.

The Assessment Act outlines in Section 53(2) that disclosed information may be released in
limited circumstances “{a) to the assessment corporation or any authorized employee of the
corporation; or (b} by any person being examined as a witness in an assessment appeal orin a
proceeding in court involving an assessment matter.”

2.4 Data Analysis

Having carried out the data collection outlined previously, the assessor needs to analyze it and
reach a conclusion regarding how it should be applied using the cost approach to value.

The cost approach for pits or quarries has the following main steps:
1. Determine the land value for the pit or quarry complex.
2. Determine reproduction cost new (RCN) of the pit or quarry buildings and structures.
3. Determine physical depreciation of the pit or quarry buildings and structures.
4, Determine functional obsolescence for the pit or quarry buildings and structures.
S. Determine external obsolescence for the pit or quarry buildings and structures.

6. Determine net improvement value for the pit or quarry buildings and structures.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 11



7. Determine RCN of the pit or quarry site improvements (yard work).
8. Determine physical depreciation of the pit or quarry site improvements.
9. Determine functional obsolescence for the pit or quarry site improvements.
10. Determine external obsolescence for the pit or quarry site improvements.
11. Determine net improvement value for the pit or quarry site improvements.
12. Add values for other purposes {e.g., excess land)}.
13. Determine current value assessment.

2.5 Valuation

Having undertaken the necessary steps outlined above, the assessor should now be ina
position to apply the appropriate valuation model.

2.6 Validating the Results

Once the assessor has completed the valuation, it is necessary to carry out a series of checks to
ensure that all relevant parts of the property have been inciuded in the valuation, there has
been no double-counting of any adjustments made for depreciation, the resulting valuation has
been compared with any market evidence that may be available in relation to similar properties
and the final valuation is in line with the valuation of other similar properties in Ontario.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 12



3.0 The Valuation

3.1 Cost Approach Overview

The theory behind the cost approach to value follows the principle of substitution: the value of
a property is equal to the amount it would cost to replace it with a substitute of equal utility.

There are two main tasks in estimating current value using the cost approach: valuing the land
and valuing the improvements.

The sum of land value plus depreciated improvement value is the estimated current value of
the real estate at the subject location.

3.2 Land Valuation
The determination of land values for pits and quarries can be broken into two steps:
* Determine the value of the raw land.

» Determine the costs associated with obtaining the necessary zoning and licencing
needed to permit extraction.

Raw Land Value

The first step involves the determination of what the raw land is worth. A pit or quarry is often
a large tract of land comparable to marginal farmland. As a result, the potential purchasers of
the subject properties often compete with farmers to acquire the large parcels of land.

The sand, stone or gravel is exempt from taxation. When arriving at the value of the raw land,
the assessor must be careful to exclude the contributory value of the aggregate. It is
recommended that assessors disregard sales of pits and quarries when they are estimating the
worth of the raw land, as the value of the sand, stone or gravel could be reflected in the sale
price.

As a basis for the value of the raw land, the assessor makes reference to the sales of marginal
farmland in the vicinity of the pit or quarry. Farmland is classified by MPAC on a scale of one to
six, with Class 1 being the most productive and Class 6 being the least productive. The marginal
farmland most comparable to the raw land used for pits and quarries is generally Class 5.

MPAC’s reliance on the sales of Class 5 farmland will ensure that the value of the sand, stone or
gravel is not included in the estimates of current value for the pits and quarries.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 13



For more information about the determination of farmland values, reference should be made
to the Methodology Guide Assessing Farms in Ontario.

Zoning and Licencing Costs

The second step involves the determination of what costs are associated with converting raw
land into land where extraction of aggregates is permitted.

The following list contains many of the steps required before any extraction may occur:
» official plan amendment
¢ z0ning bylaw amendment
* licence application to the Ministry of Natural Resources
¢ consulting fees
* hydrogeology study
¢ environment impact study
¢ archaeological assessment
s noise and vibration study
» traffic impact study

The costs will vary depending on the locations of the pits and quarries. In order to determine
the costs of each requirement, the assessor should consult with both the owners of the subject
properties and the municipalities where the subject properties are located.

The current value of the land is equal to the value of the raw land plus the cost of obtaining
permission to extract aggregate.

3.3 Building and Site Improvements
Improvement value is established in four steps:

* Collect the physical and descriptive data about the pit or quarry. Inspect the buildings,
structures and other improvements, quantify areas, note conditions and analyze their
utility.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 14



* Quantify the building areas from plans and layouts, or, if necessary, during the property
inspection.

* Using MPAC's automated cost system (ACS), estimate the reproduction cost new of the
assessable improvements as of the valuation date.

» Deduct from the reproduction cost new value an amount reflecting all forms of
depreciation, which may include:

» physical deterioration (age-life depreciation)
» functional obsolescence (curable and incurable}
» external obsolescence {economic and locational obsolescence)

The resulting value will be an estimate of the contribution of the improvements to the current
value of the subject,

Note that the assessor gathers information about both the nature of the improvements and the
way in which they are used. The assessor talks to the operator of the pit or quarry to ensure he
or she understands how the improvements are used and their efficiency.

3.4 Establishing Cost New
Three approaches can be used to establish cost new:

» historical construction cost — actual costs indexed to the valuation date, which may be
useful for relatively new buildings or structures {up to 5-10 years)

* reproduction cost techniques — applied in the valuation of most buildings or structures
and obtained from cost manuals, such as the Automated Cost System (ACS) developed
for MPAC

* replacement cost techniques — may be applied when estimating the cost of a modern
facility that is different than the existing pit or quarry and may be used in connection
with quantifying any functiona! obsolescence

The assessor will select the most relevant option for the subject property depending on its

functional utility. MPAC will use reproduction cost new {RCN) as the starting point for the
valuation.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 15



3.5 Deducting Depreciation and/or Obsoiescence

Depreciation may include physical deterioration due to age, condition and/or use of the
property. Depreciation may also include obsolescence.

Obsolescence reflects the abnormal depreciation that arises in some properties due to
functional and/or externally generated economic problems.

Functional obsolescence can be the result of numerous factors, including poor or outdated
designs, inadequate areas, excess operating costs, etc.

Obsolescence is not related to the age of the buildings and site improvements but to their
ability to adequately perform the intended functions.

The assessor asks the following question when determining a property’s obsolescence: “Could
the existing facility be replaced with a more modern, efficient substitute, and if so, what would
constitute this modern facility?”

The assessor must have knowledge of current trends and building and structure designs for pits
or quarries to recognize obsolescence. Functional obsolescence can usually be recognized
through poor design and layout, poor or inferior construction, unused areas, and the existence
of excess operating costs.

External obsolescence results from a change of circumstances outside the control of the pit or
quarry operator.

This could be a large-scale factor such as economic recession or a change in the price/value of
the aggregate, or a more localized factor such as a change in the local transportation
infrastructure, which makes the location of the pit or quarry less attractive and less valuable.

A variety of methods can be used to quantify depreciation. A description of these methods is
outside of the scope of this Methodology Guide. However, while it is important to quantify all
aspects of depreciation, it is equally important not to double count for the same aspect of
depreciation.

After the amount and degree of depreciation have been determined and quantified, if any, the
end result should reflect the reproduction cost new of the building and site improvements less
any depreciation {(RCNLD} found in the present improvements.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 16



3.6 Current Value Conclusion

Adding the value of the land plus the value of the depreciated building and site improvements
produces the current value of the property based on the cost approach.

The final step in the process is to consolidate a current value assessment for the property. Once
the determination of value has been completed following the cost approach, the assessor will
consider whether there is any other value in the real estate that has not been captured by the
analysis.

3.8 Quality Control

Having arrived at the value of the pit or quarry through the above process, MPAC assessors will
check the outcome of the valuation to ensure no errors have been made and that the value is in
line with the valuation of other similar pits or quarries in Ontario.

3.9 Conclusion

This guide sets out how MPAC assessors approach the valuation of pits and quarries for
property assessment purposes.

Although it outlines the general approach adopted, it does not replace the assessor’s judgment
and there may be some cases where the assessor adopts a different approach for justifiable
reasons.

For further information about MPAC's role, please visit mpac.ca.

© Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 2016 All rights reserved 17



Municipalities push for changes to aggregate taxation | Ontario Farmer Page | of 8

Municipalities push for changes to
aggregate taxation

Municipalities with aggregate pits asked the province to adjust the way property
taxes are calculated for aggregate operators - a move that could bring millions in
extra tax revenue to local governments.

n

. || Greg Colgan
More from Greg Colgan (https://www.ontariofarmer.com/author/gcolgan)

Published on: August 25, 2020 | Last Updated: August 29, 2020 12:14 PM EDT

Heavy equipment continues to offload aggregates on site at Picton Terminals. Municipalities are asking the
province to review the way aggregate operations are taxed. (DEREK BALDWIN/Postmedia file photo)

Municipalities with sand and gravel quarries are pushing the
province to change the way those property taxes are calculated,
potentially bringing in millions of dollars in extra tax revenue for
local governments.

A delegation from the Top Aggregate Municipalities Producers of
Ontario met with Ministry of Finance officials last week at the
annual Association of Municipalities of Ontario conference,
arguing the need for what they believe is fairer system of taxing
these aggregate properties.

httne/fwany antarinfarmer com/newe/lacalonamwve/mimicinalitisecnnichofarcrhannec_tacanmaran a/amnonn



Municipalities push for changes to aggregate taxation | Ontario Farmer Page 2 of 8

“This is a redistribution of an unfair tax burden,” Zorra Township
Mayor Marcus Ryan said. “This is a case of a property tax class
underpaying and the burden shifting to others, so it could be a tax
cut for actual voters since they're indirectly subsidizing the
aggregate industry through property taxes.”

Puslinch Township Mayor James Seeley described the meeting
with Willowdale MPP Stan Cho, the finance minister's
parliamentary assistant, as “productive,” adding municipal leaders
hope to continue the conversation.

“Under a policy-driven, equitable approach, (the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation) can enable gravel pits to pay
their fair share so that they can continue supporting the
municipalities at a time when we need their help most.”

Quarry operators are generally taxed at a farm rate under the
existing property assessment rules. However, the land directly
used to extract resources is taxed at an industrial rate. If one acre
of a 100-acre aggregate site is being used for production, for
example, that lone acre is taxed at the industrial rate while the
remainder is taxed at the lower farm rate.

Municipalities hope to have a separate aggregate tax class created
or have all the land taxed at the industrial rate, an approach that
could more than double existing taxes for quarry operators.

Annual aggregate use

« The average person uses 14 tonnes of stone, sand and gravel
each year

« 1,760 truckloads of aggregate are needed for each kilometre of
a four-lane highway

» 3,760 truckloads are used for a 32,000 square-metre hospital

» 4,560 trucks of aggregate for a one-kilometre stretch of subway
line

httne /A www antariafarmer cam/newe/lacal-news/municinalitipe-nuch-far-rhanoes-tnoacarea 0/0/7N20



Municipalities push for changes to aggregate taxation | Ontario Farmer Page 3 of 8

Source: The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation

Though a largely unknown natural resource, the sand, gravel and
stone commonly referred to as aggregate is essential in building
roads, schools, hospitals and the majority of infrastructure
projects.

In 2017, the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation and
aggregate producers reached a settlement that classified quarry
operations classified as Class 5 farmland rather than the previous
industrial rates. That decision - retroactive to 2009 - resulted in
Ontario municipalities paying back millions of dollars in collected
taxes.

The change in assessment came after more than 500 appeals
were launched - eventually known as the central appeal - to the
assessment review board, Norm Cheesman, the executive director
of the Ontario Sand, Stone and Gravel Association, said.

That adjustment made the property assessment method similar to
the approach prior to changes made in 2008 that allowed
municipalities to collect more property taxes from aggregate
lands.

Cheesman and Paula Chung, the the media relations lead for the
assessment corporation, said there were eight years of
consultation and mediation between quarry operators,
municipalities and the assessment corporation before the appeal
was settled.

In Zorra Township, industrial properties are normally assessed
between $19,000 and $26,000 an acre. Since the 2017 decision,
quarry operations in the township are now taxed at about $8,000
an acre. According to the township, quarry properties were

httne-/furanv antarinfarmer cam/newe/laral-newse/miunirinaliticecnicho farcrhanaoscdtnoanaren QnRnnIn



Municipalities push for changes to aggregate taxation | Ontario Farmer Page 4 of 8

assessed at $6.524 miillion in 2015. They declined to $4.679 million
in 2020 after property assessment was changed.

The 2020 Zorra budget will spend roughly $3 million - or about
one-third of their annual budget - on repairs or reconstruction to
bridges, culverts, roads and gravel maintenance.

How does MPAC assess value for pits
and quarries (aggregate)?

. Determine the land value for the pit or quarry complex.

. Determine reproduction cost new of the pit or quarry buildings
and structures less depreciation.

. Determine a licensing cost per acre for the site.

. Add values for other purposes, if applicable. (e.g., excess land).

. Determine the current value assessment.

Source: Municipal Property Assessment Corporation

Chung said MPAC follow all government regulations when
assessing a property’s value.

"MPAC's role is to accurately assess and classify all properties in
Ontario in accordance with the Assessment Act and regulations
established by the Government of Ontario. Any change in the way
aggregate operations are to be assessed would come from
changes to the Assessment Act and regulations.”

If aggregate operations were assessed at the low end of the
average industrial property, it would mean an additional $1 million
annually to municipal coffers, Ryan said.

“They pay a fraction similarly utilized industrial lands would pay,”
Ryan said. “Since municipal property taxes are a zero sum game, a
municipality decides a budget and divides it by the tax ratio.

httng-/wanw nntarinfarmer cominawef/lnraloneve/municrinalitiseaniichofarcchanaec tacacoren Q072070



Municipalities push for changes to aggregate taxation | Ontario Farmer Page 5 of 8

Because aggregate pits underpay, it means the other classes
overpay.”

Cheesman noted active aggregate operations do pay an industrial
rate but only for what they're using at the time. Once a specific
section of an aggregate land becomes active, that's when it's taxed
at a higher industrial rate. It's the aggregate land that's
rehabilitated, sitting empty or not active yet that's on a lower rate,
he said.

“That doesn't justify an industrial rate. It's not serviced land. It's
effectively vacant land. There's no justification for a higher tax
class.

"(The assessment corporation) worked hard to create a system
that looked at the land uses and valuations and what's really going
on, so they're taxing it on the activity and value that's happening
now.”

Cheesman said the existing system is working and aggregate
operators are paying their fair share.

The industry also pays a levy - sometimes referred to as a royalty
fee - for each tonne of aggregate produced. The levy is designed
to help with infrastructure costs for the municipalities, particularly
wear and tear on toads from the heavy vehicles carrying the rock,
gravel and sand. The aggregate sector is the lone industry that pay
this fee.

“It's a top-up, and a pretty big one at that,” he said.

Zorra, for example, received a royalty fee of about $600,000 in
2019. In total, an approximate $20 million was collected across the
province, with more than $12 million paid to lower-tier
municipalities.In 2018, the levy was raised from 11.5 cents per
tonne to 19.8 cents per tonne, and that rate, which is linked to the
consumer price index, will only increase, Cheesman said. This
year, the royalty fee has now been set at 20.6 cents per tonne.

httne /iwwnw antarinfarmer cnm/newe/lneal_newe/mimicrinalitiscomiich-far.rhanaec tn_anaraa /9707



Municipalities push for changes to aggregate taxation | Ontario Farmer Page 6 of 8

The municipal aggregate group previously sent a delegation to
Ontario Finance Minister Rod Phillips in January at the Rural
Ontario Municipal Association’s annual conference. That meeting
was intended to begin the conversation of creating a new tax class
for aggregate properties, as well as explore other approaches,

“From a municipal perspective, we don't really mind how they go
about that. The point is, in terms of demands on municipal
services, aggregate properties are much more like an industrial
property than a farm property with heavy equipment that does
damage to the roads,” Ryan said. “We have to fund them and, if
they underpay, we have to go to other properties to make that
difference.

Trucks carrying aggregate cross underneath the bridge at the 17th Line, just north
of Putnam, in Zorra Township. Municipalities are asking the province to review the
way aggregate operations are taxed, (Greg Colgan/Woodstock Sentinel-Review)
JPG, WD

“We don't want to have to keep going to residents for taxes that
they shouldn't be paying that another property tax should be

paying.”

httns-/fuwranw antarinfarmer cominepwe/laral-newe/miunicinaliticecrmichofarcrhanoecctnaaoarea Q92070



Municipalities push for changes to aggregate taxation | Ontario Farmer Page 7 of 8

In a statement, the Ministry of Finance said it's conducting a
property assessment and taxation review and will continue to seek
input from all sectors as it “carefully considers the various tax
policy proposals that are submitted through the review.”

“We will ensure that the proposals brought forward by the Top
Aggregate Producing Municipalities of Ontario are considered,
along with any input received from other stakeholders,” a ministry
spokesperson said.

The aggregate industry remains a large economic driver in
Ontario. Last year, there were more than 3,614 licenses for pits
and quarries, as well as 2,517 permits issued on Crown land and
about 161-million tonnes of production, according to the Ontario
Aggregate Resources Corporation.

Ottawa was the top producer in 2019, with 11.1-million tonnes,
followed by the City of Kawartha Lakes.

In Southwestern Ontario, North Dumfries was the fourth highest
producing jurisdiction while Zorra Township was sixth and Thames
Centre was 10th.

Aggregate production in tonnes in
Southwestern Ontario in 2019

« Brant County: 2.594 million

+ Bruce County: 1.6 million

+ Chatham-Kent: 271,000

+ Dufferin County: 2.139 million

» Elgin County: 351,400

» Essex: 3.128 million

» Grey County: 4.307 million

+ Haldimand County: 1.214 million
* Huron County: 3.655 million

* Lambton County: 624,500

+ Middlesex County: 3.880 million

httne/fwww antarinfarmer cam/mewe/laralonewe/mimicinalitieccnich-far-rhanoec-tnoaoorea Q9700



Municipalities push for changes to aggregate taxation | Ontario Farmer Page 8 of 8

Norfolk County: 889,400

Oxford County: 7.073 million

+ Perth County: 2.471 million
Waterloo Region: 8.104 million
Wellington County: 7.362 million
Total: 49.934 million tonnes

Source: Statistics from the Ontario Aggregate Resources

Corporation

Ccomments

0 Comments

Add a comment...

Facebook Comments Plugin

(https{hipsth e ianin soi@ bR emEnEEMmvS/)

© 2020 Ontario Farmer. All rights
(https://www.postmedia.com)  reserved.

A member of Sun Media Community
Newspapers part of Postmedia Network,

httne v nntarinfarmer cominewe/lacal.neve/minicinalitieccnnich-farcrhanoecctn-aaaren QANNIN



2020 Aggregate Properties

Calculation if entire property was assessed as IT

Melancthan
Roll No. Property Description Acres Tax Class Assessment Tax Rate Amount Melancthon Amount
Assessment IT Tax Rate
1-21300 WPtLot13Con 305 100 IT 198,800 1.067097% $ 2,121.39
FT 347,200 0.106787% s 370.76 546,000 1.067097% $ 582635
1-21400 W PtLot12Con 305 43.62 T 1,112,800 1.067097% $ 11,874.66
RT 184,200 0.485397% S 89410 1,297,000 1.067097% S 13,840.25
1-21450 W Pt Lot 12 Con 3 05 49.62 RT 379,000 0.485397% $ 1,839.65 379,000 1.067097% S 4,044.30
1-21500 W Pt Lot 11 Con 3 0S 67.85 RT 428,000 0.485397% $ 2,077.50 428,000 1.067097% S 4,567.18
1-21200 W Pt Lot 14 Con 3 05 99.25 RT 683,000 0.485397% $ 3,315.26 683,000 1.067097% S 7,28827
1-21850 EPtLot13Cond OS 96.47 IT 390,800 1.067097% $ 4,17022
RT 268,300 0.485397% $ 1,302.32 735,000 1.067097% $ 7.843.16
FT 75,900 0.106787% 5 81.05
1-220 EPtLot14 Con 4 OS 99,25 FT 473,700 0.106787% $ 505.85 596,000 1.067097% $ 6,359.90
RT 122,300 0.485397% $ 59364
6-11100 EPtLot9Con4 0S 92.56 FT 434,800 0.106787% $ 46431 448,000 1.067097% $  4,780.59
T 13,200 1.067097% $ 140.86
1-19600 E Pt Lot 14 Con 3 0S 164.35 IT 105,000 1.067097% $ 1,163.14 1,101,000 1.067097% $ 11,748.74
RT 992,000 0.485397% $ 4,815.14

$ 35,729.84 S 66,298.74





